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FIFTH AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs Woodrow Shelton Jr., Larry Daniels, Sr., Sandra Daniels, Cynthia Silhol, Marsha
D. Myers, Ronald Kevin Myers, Teresita Enriquez, Jeanne Cochran, Geoffrey Cochran, Timothy
Carlson, Nancy Rose, and Michael Sanchez bring this action, individually and on behalf of the
classes of persons defined below, against Defendants, Allstate Insurance Company and Allstate
Indemnity Company, pursuant to their investigations, upon knowledge as to themselves and their
own acts, and otherwise upon information and belief.

The Fourth Amended Complaint is divided into two parts. Part One consists of allegations
involving Plaintiffs Woodrow Shelton Jr., Larry Daniels, Sr., Sandra Daniels, Cynthia Silhol, Marsha
D. Myers, Ronald Kevin Myers, and Michael Sanchez, and seeks certification of Classes referred
to herein as Classes A and B. Part Two consists of allegations involving Plaintiffs Teresita Enriquez,
Jeanne Cochran, Geoffrey Cochran, Timothy Carlson, and Nancy Rose, and seeks certification of

Classes referred to herein as Classes C and D.
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PART ONE
THE PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

1. Defendants, Allstate Insurance Company (“Allstate Insurance™) and Allstate
Indemnity Company (“Allstate Indemnity”’) (hereinafier collectively referred to as “Allstate™), are
both Delaware corporations with their principal places of business in Illinois.

2. Allstate Insurance Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Allstate Corporation,
a Delaware company. Alistate Indemnity Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allstate
Insurance Company. The Allstate defendants are headquartered in Northbrook, Illinois. The Allstate
defendants write insurance in 49 states, including Tennessee, Georgia, Florida, and the District of
Columbia. Allstate issues both automobile and homeowners’ insurance policies (hereinafter
“insurance policies”) in the states in which it does business.

3. The Allstate defendants utilize standard form insurance policies which were created
by Allstate Insurance Company and which are issued to the nationwide sales force of Allstate
Insurance Company from the home office of Allstate Insurance Company in Illinois. All of the
Allstate defendants’ policyholders have the same rights, and the Allstate defendants have the same
obligations under the terms of that form policy.

4, Defendants have agents and other representatives throughout the country, including
in the state of Tennessee, and in Sumner and Davidson counties specifically.

5. Both Allstate Insurance and Allstate Indemnity are authorized to do and are doing
business in the State of Tennessee.

0. Plaintiff Woodrow Shelton, Jr., is a resident of Tennessee.

7. Plaintiff Larry Daniels, Sr., and Sandra Daniels are residents of Florida.

8. Plaintiff Cynthia Silhol is a resident of Florida.



9. Plaintiff Marsha D. Myers is a resident of Kentucky.

10.  Plaintiff Ronald Kevin Myers is a resident of Kentucky.

11.  Plaintiff Michael Sanchez is a resident of Texas.

12.  The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
Section 1331.

THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT
15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.

13. This is aclass action seeking damages from Allstate Insurance and Allstate Indemnity
for increasing premium charges for insurance coverage based in whole or in part on information in
consumer reports without making certain disclosures to applicants and insureds and others, and for
obtaining the consumer reports of non-applicants without a permissible purpose, all in violation of
the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C.§§ 1681 - 1681t (“FCRA™).

14.  The Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681 - 16814, is a federal statute first
enactedin 1971. The FCRA is a consumer protection statute that regulates the activities of consumer
reporting agencies and users of consumer reports, and provides certain rights to consumers affected
by use of their consumer reports. As a consumer protection statute, the provisions of the FCRA are
to be liberally construed in favor of the consumer.

15.  In 1996, the FCRA was further amended to expand the rights of consumers who are
adversely affected by use of their consumer reports.

16.  The FCRA provides that consumer reporting agencies may provide consumer reports
to persons who intend to use the information in connection with insurance transactions, including
underwriting of insurance policies, involving a consumer. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(a)(3)(C).

17.  The term "consumer report" means any written, oral, or other communication of any

information by a consutner reporting agency bearing on a consumer's credit worthiness, credit



standing, credit capacity, character, general reputation, personal characteristics, or mode of living
which is used or expected to be used or collected in whole or in part for the purpose of serving as
a factor in establishing the consumer's eligibility for credit or insurance to be used primarily for
personal, family, or household purposes. Consumer reports include credit reports, driving records
and prior claims reports. 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(d).

18.  The FCRA provides that if the user of a consumer report takes any adverse action
with respect to a consumer based in whole or in part on any information contained in the consumer
report, the user of the report must provide notice to the consumer of the adverse action, together with
the identity of the consumer reporting agency providing the credit report and other specific
information. 15 U.S.C. § 1681m.

19.  The FCRA adverse notice provisions are meant to provide consumers warning that
their consumer reports have been used adversely to their interests, in order to provide such
consumers with an opportunity to review the information contained in the consumer report and
determine whether mistakes in their credit reports might have contributed to such adverse action.
Where adverse notice is not provided, the consumer 1s left without this important legislative
protection from errors in such reports.

20.  Congress explicitly limits the reasons for which entities can obtain a copy of a
consumer report. The FCRA mandates that the permissible purposes for furnishing reports in
connection with insurance transactions not initiated by the consumer are only if the consumer
authorizes the agency to provide the report or the transaction consists of a firm offer of credit or
insurance to the consumer. 15 U.S.C. §1681b.

21.  The FCRA provides for civil remedies to consumers for violations of the Act,

inctuding damages, punitive damages, costs and attorneys fees. 15 U.S.C. § 1681n.



22.  The FCRA also provides that any person who knowingly and willfully obtains
information about a consumer from a consumer reporting agency under false pretenses shall be fined
under title 18, United States Code, imprisoned for not more than 2 years, or both. 15 US.C. §
1681q.

WOODROW SHELTON, JR.

23, Plaintiff Woodrow Shelton, Jr., has automobile liability insurance through Allstate
Insurance policy no. 000000688593179. The policy is renewed semi-annually on May 27 and
November 27 and was renewed in 2000 and 2001 semi-annually. Mr. Shelton is the sole named
insured under this policy.

24, Allstate obtained consumer reports on Mr. Shelton and his wife, Deborah Shelton,
during the years 2000 and 2001. Based on information contained in the consumer reports,
Mr. Shelton was charged premiums higher than the most favorable (i.e. least expensive) premiums
Allstate offered other policyholders. Mr. Shelton was charged more than the most favorable
premium amount for his automobile insurance coverage for the premium paying perieds beginning
November 27, 2000, May 27, 2001 and November 27, 2001. The higher premium Allstate charged
Mr. Shelton was based in whole or in part on the information contained in Mr. Shelton’s and/or his
wife’s consumer reports. |

25.  Neither Allstate nor any Allstate agent or employee contemporancously provided to
Mr. Shelton or to Deborah Shelton the notice and disclosure required by the FCRA, including:

(a) notice that the adverse action was taken;
(b)  the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency

making the consumer report on Mr. and Mrs. Shelton;



(c)  astatement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decision to
take the adverse action and was unable to provide Mr. and Mrs. Shelton the
specific reasons why the adverse action was taken;

(d)  notice of Mr. and Mrs. Shelton’s right to obtain a free copy of a consumer
report on them from the consumer reporting agency, indicating the 60-day
period for obtaining such a copy; and

(e) notice of Mr. and Mrs. Shelton’s right to dispute with the consumer reporting
agency the accuracy or completeness of any information in the claims report
furnished by the agency.

26.  Allstate Insurance Company’s underwriting procedures uniformly used credit report
information in determining What premium- amount the applicant would be required to pay and
whether the applicant would qualify for Allstate Insurance or Allstate Indemnity coverage. These
procedures were uniformly engaged in by the electronic underwriting system of Allstate, rather than
through individual decisions by human underwriters. These uniform electronic underwriting
procedures are used by Allstate throughout the United States.

27.  Upon information and belief, it is alleged that defendants do not as a matter of
practice and procedure provide any notice to property and/or casualty insurance applicants or
insureds that information obtained from a consumer report has been used in determining eligibility
for the lowest premium or for coverage through Allstate Insurance versus Allstate Indemnity.

LARRY DANIELS, SR, AND SANDRA DANIELS

28.  In1994, Larry Daniels, Sr., applied to Allstate for an automobile insurance policy and

was issued Allstate Indemnity policy no. 000000688593179 providing coverage for himself and for

his wife, Sandra Daniels. Larry Daniels, Sr., was not aware at the time the Allstate Indemnity policy



was issued to him that Allstate issued preferred rate policies from Allstate Insurance Company and
issued more expensive policies from Allstate Indemnity Company.

29, In or about September 1999, Larry Daniels, Sr., discovered that Allstate Insurance
Company issued preferred policies to people with good driving records, and that Allstate Indemnity
Company issued policies at higher charges for coverage to people who did not have good driving
records. Larry Daniels, Sr., then learned that he had an “Indemnity” policy.

30. Both Larry Daniels, Sr., and Sandra Daniels had good driving records, with neither
having any traffic violations or accidents. Larry Daniels, Sr., contacted his Allstate agent, explained
to the agent that he and his wife had no traffic violations and no accidents, and applied for a new
policy from Allstate Insurance Company. The Allstate agent subsequently advised Larry Daniels,
Sr., that Allstate would not issue to Larry Daniels, Sr., an Allstate Insurance Company policy. The
Allstate agent informed Mr. Daniels that Mr. Daniels could not be issued an Allstate Insurance
Company automobile policy because although Mr. Daniels had “preferred credit,” Mr. Daniels wife,
Sandra Daniels, did not.

31.  Neither Allstate nor any Allstate agent or employee ever provided to Larry Daniels,
Sr., or to Sandra Daniels:

(a) the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency
making the credit report on Mr. and Mrs. Daniels;

(b) a statement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decision to
take the adverse action and was unable to provide Mr. and Mrs. Daniels the specific reasons why the

adverse action was taken,



(¢)  notice of Mr. and Mrs. Daniels’ right to obtain a free copy of a consumer
report on them from the consumer reporting agency, indicating the 60-day period for obtaining such
a copy; and

(d)  notice of Mr, and Mrs. Daniels’ right to dispute with the consumer reporting
agency the accuracy or completeness of any information in the consumer report furnished by the
agency.

32.  Allstate Insurance Company’s underwriting procedures uniformly used credit report
information from an applicant and a second person in the same household in determining what
premium amount the applicant would be required to pay and whether the applicant would qualify
for Allstate Insurance or Allstate Indemnity coverage. These procedures were uniformly engaged
in by the electronic underwriting system of Allstate, rather than through individual decisions by
human underwriters. These uniform electronic underwriting procedures are used by Allstate
throughout the United States.

33.  Upon information and belief, it is alleged that defendants do not as a matter of
practice and procedure provide any notice to property and/or casualty insurance insureds, and other
members of the same household whose consumer reports were used in underwriting, that information
obtained from a consumer report has been used in determining eligibility for the lowest premium or
for coverage through Allstate Insurance versus Allstate Indemnity.

CYNTHIA SILHOL AND MICHAEL SANCHEZ

34.  InMay, 2000, Cynthia Silhol applied for automobile insurance coverage with Allstate
Insurance Company at the Killingsworth Insurance Agency in Spring Hill, Florida.

35.  In 2001, Michael Sanchez applied for automobile insurance coverage with Allstate

in the State of Texas.



36.  After obtaining information from Ms, Silhol and Mr. Sanchez, and quoting premium

rates to them, Allstate then electronically obtained consumer reports on them and used the consumer

report information to determine whether to issue them policies.

37.  Based in whole or in part on the information obtained from Ms. Silhol’s and Mr.

Sanchez’ consumer reports, Allstate charged higher premiums for obtaining their automobile

insurance polices. They were not given notice of the adverse actions taken.

38.  Neither Allstate nor any Allstate agent or employce ever provided to Ms. Silhol or

Mr. Sanchez:

(&

(c)

(d)

the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency
making the credit report on them;

a statement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decisions to
take the adverse actions and was unable to provide them the specific reasons
why the adverse actions were taken;

notice of Ms. Silhol’s and Mr. Sanchez’ right to obtain a free copy of a
consumer report on them from the consumer reporting agency, indicating the
60-day period for obtaining such a copy; and

notice of their right to dispute with the fsonsumer reporting agency the
accuracy or completeness of any information in the claims report furnished

by the agency.

39.  Allstate Insurance Company’s underwriting procedures uniformly used consumer

report information in determining whether applicants would receive insurance from Allstate and how

much premiums to charge. These procedures were uniformly engaged in by the electronic



underwriting system of Allstate Insurance Company, rather than through individual decisions by
human underwriters.

40.  These uniform electronic underwriting procedures are used by Allstate Insurance
Company throughout the United States.

41. By charging higher pre;niums based on Ms. Silhol’s and Mr, Sanchez’ application
for automobile insurance based in whole or in part upon information in a consumer report,
defendants took adverse action against them as defined in the FCRA.

42,  Plaintiff Ms. Silhol subsequently obtained a copy of her credit report and determined
that there were numerous mistakes contained within the report from Trans Union, a consumer
reporting agency which had provided the electronic information to Allstate.

43,  Allstate Insurance Company and Allstate Indemnity Company failed to provide them
with any notification, oral, written or electronic, advising them of their rights to obtain a free copy
of her credit report in order to determine whether mistakes in their credit reports might have
contributed to the adverse actions, nor did Allstate comply with the requirements of 15 U.S.C. §
1681m.

44,  Upon information and belief, it is alleged that defendants do not as a matter of
practice and procedure provide any notice to property and/or casualty insurance applicants who are
charged higher premiums for insurance that the information obtained from a credit report has been
used in determining eligibility for insurance with Allstate.

MARSHA D. MYERS AND RONALD KEVIN MYERS
45.  Plaintiffs Marsha D. Myers and Ronald Kevin Myers carried automobile insurance

with Defendant Allstate for a number of years.
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46.  In 2001, the premium for Plaintiffs Marsha D. Myers and Ronald Kevin Myers’
automobile insurance rose dramatically despite the fact that they had made no claims under their
policy and had received no moving or traffic violations.

47.  Allstate examined Plaintiffs Marsha D. Myers and Ronald Kevin Myers’ credit
reports immediately prior to increasing the premium for their automobile insurance policy.

48.  When Plaintiffs Marsha D. Myers and Ronald Kevin Myers asked their Allstate agent
if their premium increase was based on information contained in their consumer reports, the agent
denied that a credit check had been performed at all and stated that the rate increases were “across
the board” for all policyholders.

49.  Neither Allstate nor any Allstate agent or employee ever provided to the Myers:

(a) the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency
making the credit reports on the Myers;

(b) a statement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decision to
take the adverse action and was unable to provide the Myers the specific
reasons why the adverse action was taken;

(© notice of the Myers’ right to obtain a free copy of a consumer reports on them
from the consumer reporting agency, indicating the 60-day period for
obtaining such a copy; and

(d)  notice of the Myers’ right to dispute with the consumer reporting agency the
accuracy or completeness of any information in the claims report furnished

by the agency.

11



CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

50.  Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to Rule 23, Fed. R. Civ. P. individually and on
behalf of other persons similarly situated. Plaintiffs Woodrow Shelton, Larry Daniels, Cynthia
Silhol Ronald and Marsha Myers, and Michael Xanchez seek to represent the following class of
consumers hereinafter referred to as “Class A™

Residents of the United States of America who on or after October

31, 1998, were charged increased rates or other sub-optimal terms for

insurance by Allstate Insurance Company or Allstate Indemnity

Company, based in whole or in part on information in consumer

reports without adequate disclosures being provided to them as

required by the Fair Credit Reporting Act.
To be excluded from the Class are persons employed by or otherwise related to Allstate Indemnity
Company, Allstate Insurance Company, their successors, or affiliates.

51.  Plaintiff Sandra Daniels seeks to represent the following class of consumers

hereinafter referred to as “Class B”:

Residents of the United States of America who on or after February

4, 2000, had their credit reports obtained by Allstate Insurance

Company or Allstate Indemnity Company based on the application

for insurance of another person, without a permissible purpose by

Allstate as required by the Fair Credit Reporting Act.
To be excluded from Class B are persons employed by or otherwise related to Allstate Indemnity
Company, Allstate Insurance Company, their successors, or affiliates.

52.  Plaintiffs each were subjected to adverse action due to information contatned in
consumer reports. Plaintiff Woodrow Shelton is an insured whose premiums were raised. Plaintiffs
Larry Daniels, Sr. is an insured who was denied the most favorable terms for insurance, based on the
credit report of a non-applicant, Sandra Daniels. Plaintiff Sandra Daniels is a person whose credit

report was obtained by Allstate without a permissible purpose. Plaintiffs Cynthia Silhol and Michael

Sanchez were charged higher premiums based in whole or in part on their credit reports. Plaintiffs
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Ronald and Marsha Myers were insured whose premiums were raised upon renewal. While the type
of adverse action to which they were subjected differed, each plaintiff did not receive the notice
required by law whenever any type of adverse action is taken.

53.  Plaintiffs Woodrow Shelton, Larry Daniels, Ronald Myers, and Marsha Myers, and
Michael Sanchez, on behalf of Class A bring the claims asserted in Counts I, III, and V of this
complaint.

54,  Plaintiff Sandra Daniels, on behalf of Class B brings the claims asserted in Counts
IT, TV, and VI of this complaint.

RULE 23(A) ALLEGATIONS

55.  Pursuant to Rule 23(a), this action may be maintained as a class action because all
procedural elements are satisfied, as set forth below:

1. NUMEROSITY

56.  Allstate is one of the largest issuers in the United States. The number of consumers
with respect to whom Allstate issued a policy or rejected an application, and took an adverse action
under the FCRA and failed to provide the information and notices required under the FCRA to either
the applicants or non-applicants named therein, is in excess of one million. The exact number and
identity of the members of the Class is unknown to Plaintiffs but can easily be determined from
Allstate’s records.

57.  The members of Class A and Class B are so numerous that it would be impractical

to join all of the members of the Class within the meaning of Rule 23(a)(1).
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2. COMMONALITY

58.  Onbehalfofthe Class, the representative Plaintiffs bring claims which raise questions

of law and fact common to all members of the Class, as contemplated by Rule 23(a)(2). Common

issues include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(¢)

Whether Allstate violated the FCRA when Allstate issued policies and took
adverse actions against applicants for insurance based in whole or in part on
information contained in their consumer reports, or the consumer reports of
others listed in the application, failed to properly advise the applicants and
others listed in the application that adverse actions had been taken against
them, and failed to properly provide the applicants and others listed in the
application with the information and notices required under the FCRA;
Whether Allstate violated the FCRA when Allstate obtained the credit reports
of other persons listed in applications for insurance without a permissible
purpose under the FCRA,;

Whether Allstate violated the FCRA when Allstate took adverse actions
against existing Allstate insureds based in whole or in part on information
contained in consumer reports without providing the notices required under
the FCRA;

Whether form notices by Allstate to Allstate insureds were sufficient

notices as required by the FCRA;

Whether form notices by Allstate that "lower rates" could not be offered, that

it was “possible” that an adverse decision was based on a consumer report,
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and that "it might be a good idea to check your report" are sufficient notices
of adverse action as required by the FCRA;
(f) Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA were willful;
(g) Whether Allstate’s actions in obtaining the credit reports of persons other
than applicants were willful,
(h) Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA were done in reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights;
(i) Whether Allstate’s actions in obtaining the credit reports of persons other
than applicants were done in reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights.
G) Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA was a negligent violation of the FCRA,;
(k) Whether Allstate’s actions in obtaining the credit reports of persons other
than applicants were a negligent violation of the FCRA; and
(D) Whether members of the Class are entitled to an award of statutory damages
under the FCRA.
3. TYPICALITY
59.  In accordance with the requirements of Rule 23(a)(3), the representative Plaintiffs’
claims are typical of the claims of all other members of each Class, and the representative Plaintiffs
have no interests which are adverse or antagonistic to the interests of the members of the Classes.
The representative Plaintiffs’ claims with regard to Class A are typical of the claims of the members

of each Class because all such claims arise from a series of identical business practices, or a common
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course of conduct, involving Allstate’s failure to notify consumers that adverse actions had been
taken against them, and Allstate’s failure to provide other required information to consumers..

60. Sandra Daniels’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of Class B because
all such claims arise from a series of identical business practices, or a common course of conduct,
involving Allstate obtaining consumer reports during the course of underwriting insurance
applications relating to people other than the applicant, which is an impermissible purpose and
violates thc FCRA.

4, ADEQUACY

61.  Imaccordance with the requirements of Rule 23(a}(4), the representative Plaintiffs and
their counsel will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of each member of the two
Class. The representative Plaintiffs and the Classes share common interests, and the representative
Plaintiffs are committed to the vigorous prosecution of this action and have retained competent
counsel experienced in class action litigation.

RULE 23(B){3) ALLEGATIONS

62.  Questions of [aw and fact common to the Class Members predominate over any
questions affecting only individual members.

63. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy. Most individual Class members have little ability to prosecute an
individual action due to the complexity of the issues involved in this litigation, the significant costs
attendant to litigation on this scale, and the comparatively small, although significant, damages
suffered by individual Class members. Absent a class action, Class members will continue to suffer
damages. Allstate’s violations of federal law will proceed without remedy while Allstate continues

to retain the proceeds of its higher premium insurance rates.
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64.  This action will result in an orderly and expeditious administration of Class claims.
Economies of time, effort, and expense will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be insured.
65.  This action presents no difficulty that would impede its management by the Court as
a class action. When the liability of Allstate has been adjudicated, the damages of each class
member can be administratively determined. A class action is superior to other available methods
for the fair and efficient adjudication of each class member’s claim.
COUNT1

WILLFUL NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
REGARDING CLASS A

66.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

67.  Allstate willfully fails to comply with the notice requirements for users of consumer
reports imposed under the FCRA. Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice
and procedure is to not advise consumers of an increase in any charge for insurance when such
adverse action is based in whole or in part on the information contained in a consumer report.

68.  Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice and procedure is to
not provide consumers with the notices and other information required under the FCRA in the event
of an increase in any charge for insurance when such adverse action is based in whole or in part on
the information contained in a consumer report.

69.  Allstate’s adoption of its policy and Allstate’s practice and procedure of failing to
notify consumers that an adverse action has been taken against them, and failing to provide
consumers with notice of the consumers’ rights and other information required by the FCRA, is in

reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights.
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70.  Allstate’s adoption of its policy and Allstate’s practice and procedure of failing to
notify consumers that an adverse action has been taken against them, and failing to provide
consumers with notice of the consumers’ rights and other information required by the FCRA, is in
conscious disregard of the consumers’ rights.

71.  Each Plaintiff and each member of Class A has sustained damages as a result of
Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA. Each Plaintiff and each member of Class A is also
entitled under Section 617 of the FCRA to damages of not less than $100 and not more than $1,000.

Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class is also entitled to attorneys’ fees as provided in the

FCRA.
COUNTII
WILLFUL NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
REGARDING CLASS B
72,  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

73.  Allstate willfully violates the FCRA by obtaining consumer reports in connection
with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than the applicant.

74.  Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice and procedure is to
obtain consumer reports on individuals other than the applicant during the underwriting of an
application for insurance. This policy and practice is not supported by a permissible purpose and
violates the FCRA.

75.  Allstate’s policy, practice and procedure of obtaining consumer reports in connection
with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than the applicant is

in reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights.
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76.  Allstate’s policy, practice and procedure of obtaining consumer reports during the
course of underwriting insurance applications relating to people other than the applicant is in
conscious disregard of the consumers’ rights.

77.  SandraDaniels and each similar member of Class B has sustained damages as a result
of Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA. Sandra Daniels and each such member of Class B
is also entitled under Section 617 of the FCRA to damages of not less than $100 and not more than
$1,000. Each Plaintiff and each member of Class B is also entitled to attorneys’ fees as provided in
the FCRA.

COUNT IIT

NEGLIGENT NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
REGARDING CLASS A

78.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

79.  Allstate negligently fails to comply with the notice requirements for users of
consumer reports imposed under the FCRA. Allstate fails to advise consumers of an increase in any
charge for insurance based in whole or in part on information contained in consumer reports as
defined by the FCRA. Allstate negligently fails to provide consumers with the notices and other
information required under the FCRA in the event of an increase in any charge for insurance, based
in whole or in part on the information contained in a consumer report.

80.  Allstate’s conduct wrongfully violates the notice provisions for users of consumer
reports under the FCRA.

81. Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class has sustained damages as a result of

Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA, in that Class members have uniformly lost the

19



opportunity to obtain free of charge copies of their credit report used adversely against them,
pursuant to the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681j(b).
COUNT IV

NEGLIGENT NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
REGARDING CLASS B

82.  Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

83.  Allstate negligently fails to comply with the FCRA by obtaining consumer reports
in connection with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than
the applicant.

84.  Allstate’s conduct wrongfully violates the notice provisions and permissible purpose
provisions for users of consumer reports under the FCRA.

85.  Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class has sustained damages as a result of
Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA.

COUNT V
INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF AS TO CLASS A

86.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein the allegations set forth above as if fully
set forth herein.

87.  Allstate continues to violate the rights of its applicants and customers in failing to
provide notice of adverse action under the FCRA, and if not enjoined from such violations by the
Court, Allstate will continue to engage in conduct which disregards the rights of consumers,

88.  Unless Allstate is ordered to provide to Plaintiffs the adverse notice required by the

FCRA, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate remedy at

law.
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89.  Uponinformation and belief, the acts complained of herein were done by Allstate as
part of a pattern and practice of failing to provide the required FCRA adverse action notice to
pérsons whose consumer information have been obtained and used in whole or in part to underwrite
the consumers’ applications for insurance.

90.  Uponinformation and belief, Allstate maintains no reasonable procedures designed
to insure that the required FCRA notices will be provided to the members of the Class, or such
procedures which are maintained are inadequate to insure that the required notifications will be
provided.

91.  Regarding those members of the Class who have already had adverse action taken on
their insurance premiums or applications, unless Allstate is ordered to provide to them the required
written notifications, they will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate
remedy at law.

COUNT VI
INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF AS TO CLASS B

92.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein the foregoing allegations.

93.  Allstate continues to violate the rights of consumers by obtaining consumer reports
on them in connectionwith the underwriting of an insurance policy application submitted by another
person, and if not enjoined from such violations by the Court, Allstate will continue to engage in
conduct which disregards the rights of consumers.

94.  Unless Allstate is ordered to cease and desist obtaining consumer reports on
consumers in connection with the underwriting of an insurance application by another person, the

consumers will continue to suffer iireparable injury for which there is no adequate remedy at law.
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95.  Uponinformation and belief, the acts complained of herein were done by Allstate as
part of a pattern and practice of obtaining consumer reports for impermissible purposes under the
FCRA and under false pretenses.

96.  Upon information and belief, Allstate maintains no reasonable procedures designed
to insure that consumer reports are not obtained for impermissible purposes or under false pretenses.

97.  Regarding those members of the Class who have already had their consumer reports
obtained for impermissible purposes and/or under false prelenses, unless Allstate is ordered to
discontinue this practice, they will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate
remedy at law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, demand
judgment against Allstate Indemnity and Allstate Insurance as follows:

(a) Certify this action as a class action and designate Plaintiffs as the representatives
thereof;

(b)  Award each Plaintiff and member of the Classes either (i) the actual damages
sustained by such Plaintiff or member of each Class as a result of Allstate’s willful failure to comply
with the FCRA, or (ii) damages of not less than $100 and not more than $1,000;

(©) Award each Plaintiff and member of the Classes the actual damages sustained by
them as a result of Allstate’s negligent failure to comply with the FCRA,;

(d) Award Plaintiffs and the members of the Classes reasonable attorneys’ fees,
prejudgment interest, and the costs and expenses incurred in this action, including experts’ fees; and

(e) Grant such other relief as may be appropriate under the circumstances.
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PART TWO
THE PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

96.  Defendants, Allstate Insurance Company (“Allstate Insurance™) and Allstate
Indemnity Company (“Allstate Indemnity”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Allstate™), are
both Delaware corporations with their principal places of business in Iilinois.

97.  Allstate Insurance Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Allstate Corporation,
a Delaware company. Allstate Indemnity Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allstate
Insurance Company. The Allstate defendants are headquartered in Northbrook, Itlinois. The Allstate
defendants write insurance in 49 states, including Tennessee, Georgia, Florida, énd the District of
Columbia, Allstate sells both automobile and homeowners’ insurance policies (hereinafter
“insurance policies”).

98.  The Allstate defendants utilize standard application forms and procedures which were
created by Allstate Insurance Company and which are used by the nationwide sales force of Allstate
Insurance Company as directed from the home office of Allstate Insurance Company in Illinois.

99.  Defendants have agents and other representatives throughout the country, including
in the state of Tennessee, and in Sumner and Davidson counties specifically.

100. Both Allstate Insurance and Allstate Indemnity are authorized to do and are doing
business in the State of Tennessee.

101.  Plaintiff Teresita Enriquez is a resident of Florida.

102.  Plamtiffs Jeanne Cochran and Geoffrey Cochran are residents of Georgia.

103.  Plaintiff Timothy Carlson is a resident of Texas.

104. Plaintiff Nancy Rose is a resident of Louisiana.
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105. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
Section 1331, and venue is proper in the Middle District of Tennessee pursuant to stipulation of
Plaintiffs and Defendants.

THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT
15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.

106. Thisisaclass action seeking damages from Allstate Insurance and Allstate Indemnity
for increasing premium charges for insurance coverage, offering other than the lowest premium
available, and requiring payment of premium charges in a lump sum, rather than by installments, all
based in whole or in part on information in consumer reports without making certain disclosures to
applicants who never were issued a policy, and for obtaining the consumer reports of non-applicants
without a permissible purpose, in connection with applications for insurance by others who were
never issued a policy, all in violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C.§§ 1681 - 1681t
(“FCRA™).

107. The Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681 - 1681t, is a federal statute first
enacted in 1971, The FCRA is a consumer protection statute that regulates the activities of consumer
reporting agencies and users of consumer reports, and provides certain rights to consumers affected
by use of their consumer reports. As a consumer protection statute, the provisions of the FCRA are
to be liberally construed in favor of the consumer.

108. In 1996, the FCRA was further amended to expand the rights of consumers who are
adversely affected by use of their consumer reports.

109. The FCRA provides that consumer reporting agencies may provide consumer reports
to persons who intend to use the information in connection with insurance transactions, including

underwriting of insurance policies, involving a consumer. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(a)(3)(C).
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110. The term "consumer report” means any written, oral, or other communication of any
information by a consumer reporting agency bearing on a consumer's credit worthiness, credit
standing, credit capacity, character, general reputation, personal characteristics, or mode of living
which is used or expected to be used or collected in whole or in part for the purpose of serving as
a factor in establishing the consumer's eligibility for credit or insurance to be used primarily for
personal, family, or household purposes. Consumer reports include credit reports, driving records
and prior claims reports. 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(d).

111. The FCRA provides that if the user of a consumer report takes any adverse action
with respect to a consumer based in whole or in part on any information contained in the consumer
report, the user of the report must provide notice to the consumer of the adverse action, together with
the identity of the consumer reporting agency providing the credit report and other specific
information. 15 U.S.C. § 1681m.

112, “Adverse action” is defined in the FCRA as: “a denial or cancellation of, an increase
in any charge for, or a reduction or other adversre or unfavorable change in the terms of coverage
or amount of, any insurance, existing or  applied for, in connection with the underwriting of
insurance.” 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(k)(1)}BXI) (emphasis added).

113. The FCRA adverse notice provisions are meant to provide consumers warning that
their consumer reports have been used adversely to their interests, in order to provide such
consumers with an opportunity to review the information contained in the consumer report and
determine whether mistakes in their credit reports might have contributed to such adverse action.
Where adverse notice is not provided, the consumer is left without this important legislative

protection from errors in such reports. The FCRA notice provisions are meant to govern any
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application, whether or not any insurance policy is ultimately issued in connection with that
application.

114, Congress explicitly limits the reasons for which entities can obtain a copy of a
consumer report. The FCRA mandates that the permissible purposes for fgrnishing reports in
connection with insurance transactions not initiated by the consumer are only if the consumer
authorizes the agency to provide the report or the transaction consists of a firm offer of credit or
insurance to the consumer. 15 U.S.C. §1681b. A permissible purpose exists to obtain a consumer
report only for the applicant of an insurance policy, and not for other persons, including others in the
same household of the applicant.

115. The FCRA provides for civil remedies to consumers for violations of the Act,
including damages, punitive damages, costs and attorneys fees. 15 U.S.C. § 1681n.

116. The FCRA also provides that any person who knowingly and willfully obtains
information about a consumer from éconsumer reporting agency under false pretenses shall be fined
under title 18, United States Code, imprisoned for not more than 2 years, or both. 15 U.S.C. §
1681q.

JEANNE COCHRAN AND GEOFFREY COCHRAN

117.  On or about August 6, 2001, Jeanne Cochran applied to Allstate for a homeowner’s
insurance policy. The application was taken over the phone by an Allstate agent in Douglasville,
Georgia. Jeanne Cochran was the sole applicant for the homeowner’s insurance policy.

118.  Allstate’s agent requested and Ms. Cochran provided the names and social security
numbers for Ms. Cochran’s adult children who resided in Ms. Cochran’s home. Ms. Cochran

provided Alistate with the social security number of Geoffrey Cochran, her adult son.
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119.  Allstate obtained a consumer report for Geoffrey Cochran from a consumer reporting
agency and used the information in the consumer report in part té underwrite the homeowner’s
insurance policy for which Jeanne Cochran applied.

120. Based in whole or in part on the information contained in Geoffrey Cochran’s
consumer report, Allstate increased the charge for insurance in connection with Jeanne Cochran’s
application for homeowner’s insurance.

121.  Allstate never rececived permission from Geoffrey Cochran to obtain a consumer
report containing information about him. Allstate did not have a permissible purpose under the
FCRA to obtain Geoffrey Cochran’s consumer report. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b.

122. Neither Allstate nor any Allstate agent or employee ever provided to Jeanne Cochran
or to Geoffrey Cochran the notice and disclosure required by the FCRA, including:

(a) notice that the adverse action was taken;

(b)  the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency
making the consumer report on Geoffrey Cochran or Jeanne Cochran;

(c) a statement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decision to
take the adverse action and was unable to provide Jeanne Cochran or
Geoffrey the specific reasons why the adverse action was taken;

(d)  notice of Jeanne Cochran’s or Geoffrey Cochran’s right to obtain a free copy
of a consumer report on them from the consumer reporting agency, indicating
the 60-day period for obtaining such a copy; and

(e) notice of Jeanne Cochran or Geoffrey Cochran’s right to dispute with the
consumer reporting agency the accuracy or completeness of any information

in the consumer report furnished by the agency.
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TERESITA ENRIQUEZ, TIMOTHY CARLSON, AND NANCY ROSE

123. InOctober, 2001, Plaintiff Teresita Enriquez purchased a new Ford automobtle and
visited Allstate Insurance Company’s offices in Sarasota, Florida, where she applied for automobile
insurance with Allstate Insurance Company.

124, After obtaining information from Ms. Enriquez, Allstate Insurance Company
electronically obtained a consumer report on Ms. Enriquez and, used the consumer information to
underwrite her application for automobile insurance.

125. Based in whole or in part on Ms. Enriquez’s consumer report information, Allstate
determined that Ms. Enriquez did not qualify for Allstate Insurance Company’s lowest insurance
premium, and also determined that Ms. Enriquez would be required to pay the first six months of
premiums “up front,” rather than in installments.

126,  Allstate informed Ms. Enriquez that to obtain an automobile insurance policy, she
would have to pay Allstate Insurance Company the full $781 for the first six month automobile
insurance policy.

127.  Further, Ms. Enriquez was offered a policy issued by Allstate Indemnity Company,
based upon her credit score and underwriting information.

128.  Allstate Insurance Company’s underwriting procedures uniformly used credit report
information in determining whether applicants would be required to pay the total premiums for the
initial term of the policy, as opposed to being allowed to pay in installments. These procedures were
uniformly engaged in by the electronic underwriting system of Allstate Insurance Company, rather
than through individual decisions by human underwriters.

129.  These uniform electronic underwriting procedures are used by Allstate Insurance

Company throughout the United States.
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130. By requiring Ms. Enriquez to pay all of her premiums “up front,” based in whole or

in part upon information in a consumer report, Allstate took adverse action against Ms. Enriquez as

defined in the FCRA.

131. Ms. Enriquez could not afford to pay her premiums in such a lump sum fashion, and

declined coverage with Allstate. She was able to obtain insurance from another source, and was

allowed to pay on a monthly basis.

132. Neither Allstate nor any Alistatc agent or employee ever provided to Ms. Enriquez,

the notice and disclosure required by the FCRA, including:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

notice that the adverse action was taken;

the name, address, and telephone number of the consumer reporting agency
making the consumer report on Ms, Enriquez;

a statement that the consumer reporting agency did not make the decision to
take the adverse action and was unable to provide Ms. Enriquez the specific
reasons why the adverse action was taken;

notice of Ms. Enriquez’s right to obtain a free copy of a consumer report on
them from the consumer reporting agency, indicating the 60-day period for
obtaining such a copy; and

notice of Ms. Enriquez’s right to dispute with the consumer reporting agency
the accuracy or completeness of any information in the claims report

furnished by the agency.

133.  Upon information and belief, it is alleged that defendants do not as a matter of

practice and procedure provide any notice to property and/or casualty insurance applicants or
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insureds that the information obtained from a consumer report has been used in determining
eligibility for installment or periodic payment of premiums.

134, Plaintiffs Carlson and Rose each had made application for an Allstate policy or
renewal of policy, and were adversely affected by information in their respective consumer reports,
and each alleges that he or she received no adverse action notice. The allegations of paragraphs 132
are realleged herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

135, Plaintiffs bring this actton pursuant to Rule 23, Fed. R. Civ, P. individually and on
behalf of other persons similarly situated. Plaintiffs Jeanne Cochran, Teresita Enriquez, Timothy
Carlson, and Nancy Rose seek to represent the following class of consumers hereinafter referred to
as “Class C™

Residents of the United States of America who on or after January 1,

1994, were charged increased rates or other sub-optimal terms for

insurance by Allstate Insurance Company or Allstate Indemnity

Company, based in whole or in part on information in consumer

reports, and who were never subsequently issued an insurance policy,

without adequate disclosures being provided to them as required by

the Fair Credit Reporting Act.
To be excluded from Class C are persons employed by or otherwise related to Allstate Indemnity
Company, Allstate Insurance Company, their successors, or affiliates.

136.  Plaintiff Geoffrey Cochran brings this action pursuant to Rule 23, Fed. R. Civ. P.
individually and on behalf of other persons similarly situated. Plaintiff Geoffrey Cochran seeks to
represent the following class of consumers hereinafter referred to as “Class D

Residents of the United States of America who on or after January 1,
1994, had their credit reports obtained by Allstate Insurance Company
and Allstate Indemnity Company in connection with the application
of another person for an insurance policy, where no policy was

subsequently issued in connection with that application, and for
whom Allstate Insurance Company and Allstate Indemnity Company
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had no permissible purpose to obtain such credit report as required by
the Fair Credit Reporting Act.

To be excluded from Class D are persons employed by or otherwise related to Allstate Indemnity
Company, Allstate Insurance Company, their successors, or affiliates.

137.  Plaintiffs Jeanne Cochran, Teresita Enriquez, Timothy Carlson, and Nancy Rose each
were subjected to adverse action due to information contained in consumer reports, based on an
application for insurance each made to Allstate, and who did not receive the notice required by law
whenever any type of adverse action is taken.. Plaintiff Geoffrey Cochran is a person whose credit
report was obtained by Allstate based on the application for insurance made by Jeanne Cochran.

138. Plaintiffs Jeanne Cochran, Teresita Enriquez, Timothy Carlson, and Nancy Rose, on
behalf of Class C bring the claims asserted in Counts VII, IX, and XI of this complaint.

139.  Plaintiff Geoffrey Cochran on behalf of Class D brings the claims asserted in Counts
VT, X, and XII of this complaint.

RULE 23(A) ALLEGATIONS

140, Pursuant to Rule 23(a), this action may be maintained as a plass action because all
procedural elements are satisfied, as set forth below:

1. NUMEROSITY

141.  Allstate is one of the largest insurers in the United States. The number of consumers
with respect to whom Allstate took an adverse action under the FCRA and failed to provide the
information and notices required under the FCRA isin excess of one million. The exact number and
identity of the members of Class C is unknown to Plaintiffs but can easily be determined from
Allstate’s records.

142, The number of consumers for whom Allstate obtained consumer reports with no

permissible purpose and in violation of the FCRA currently is unknown to plaintiffs, but plaintiffs
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believe that the proposed class is in the thousands of thousands. The exact number and identity of

the members of Class D can easily be determined from Allstate’s records.

143, The members of Class C and Class D are so numerous that it would be impractical

to join all of the members of each Class within the meaning of Rule 23(a)(1).

2. COMMONALITY

144.  Onbehalf of Class C, the representative Plaintiffs bring claims which raise questions

of law and fact commeon to all members of Class C, as contemplated by Rule 23(a)(2). Common

issues include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Whether Allstate violated the FCRA when Allstate took adverse actions
against applicants for insurance based in whole or in part on information
contained in consumer reports, failed to properly advise the applicants that
adverse actions had been taken against them, and failed to properly provide
the applicants with the information and notices required under the FCRA;
Whether Allstate violated the FCRA when Allstate took adverse actions
against applicants for insurance based in whole or in part on information
contained in consumer reports without providing the notices required under
the FCRA;

Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA were willful,

Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA were done in reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights;
Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required

by the FCRA was a willfull violation of the FCRA;
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(B

(2

Whether Allstate’s actions in failing to provide adequate notice as required
by the FCRA was a negligent violation of the FCRA,; and
Whether members of Class A are entitled to an award of statutory damages

under the FCRA,

145.  On behalf of Class D, the representative Plaintiff, Geoffrey Cochran brings claims

which raise questions of law and fact common to all members of Class D, as contemplated by Rule

23(a)(2). Common issucs include:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d

(c)

®

Whether Allstate engages in a practice of obtaining consumer reports during
the course of underwriting insurance applications relating to people other
than the applicant;

Whether Allstate’s practice of obtaining such consumer reports violates the
FCRA;

Whether Allstate acted without a permissible purpose in connection with its
practice of obtaining consumer reports relating to people other than the
applicant;

Whether Allstate willfully violates the strictures of the FCRA by obtaining
consumer reports without a permissible purpose;

Whether Allstate obtained consumer reports for individuals other than the
applicants using false pretenses within the meaning of the FCRA;

Whether Plaintiff and members of Class B are entitled to recover statutory

damages under the FCRA,
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3. TYPICALITY

146.. In accordance with the requirements of Rule 23(a)(3), the representative Plaintiffs’
claims are typical of the claims of all other members of each Class, and the representative Plaintiffs
have no interests which are adverse or antagonistic to the interests of the members of the Classes.
The representative Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the members of Class C because all
such claims arise from a series of identical business practices, or a common course of conduct,
involving Allstate’s failure to notify consumers that adverse actions had been taken against them and
Allstate’s failure to provide other required information to consumers, in violation of the FCRA.

147.  Geoffrey Cochran’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of Class D
because all such claims arise from a series of identical business practices, or a common course of
conduct, involving Allstate obtaining consumer reports during the course of underwriting insurance
applications relating to people other than the applicant, which is an impermissible purpose and
violates the FCRA.

4. ADEQUACY

148. Inaccordance with the requirements of Rule 23(a)(4), the representative Plaintiffs and
their counsel will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of each member of Class
C and Class D. The representative Plaintiffs and the Classes share common interests, and the
representative Plaintiffs are committed to the vigorous prosecution of this action and have retained
competent counsel experienced in class action litigation.

RULE 23(B)(3) ALLEGATIONS
149.  Questions of law and fact common to the Class Members clearly predominate over

any questions affecting only individual members.
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150. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy. Most individual Class members have little ability to prosecute an
individual action due to the complexity of the issues involved in this litigation, the significant costs
attendant to litigation on this scale, and the comparatively small, although significant, damages
suffered by individual Class members. Absent a class action, Class members will continue to suffer
damages. Allstate’s violations of federal law will proceed without remedy while Allstate continues
to retain the proceeds of its higher premium insurance rates.

151.  This action will result in an orderly and expeditious administration of Class claims.
Economies of time, effort, and expense will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be insured.

152,  This action presents no difficulty that would impede its management by the Court as
a class action. When the liability of Allstate has been adjudicated, the damages of each class
member can be administratively determined. A class action is superior to other available methods
for the fair and efficient adjudication of each class member’s claim.

COUNT VII

WILLFUL NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
ASTO CLASSC

153. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

154.  Allstate willfully fails to comply with the notice requirements for users of consumer
reports imposed under the FCRA. Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice
and procedure is to not advise consumers of a denial or cancellation of, or increase in any charge for,
insurance when such adverse action is based in whole or in part on the information contained in a

prior claims experience report, a motor vehicle department driving record report, or a credit history

report.

35



155.  Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice and procedure is to
not provide consumers with the notices and other information required under the FCRA in the event
of a denial or cancellation of, or increase in any charge for, insurance when such adverse action is
based in whole or in part on the information contained in a consumer report.

156.  Allstate’s adoption of its policy and Allstate’s practice and procedure of failing to
notify consumers that an adverse action has been taken against them, and failing to provide
consumers with notice of the consumers’ rights and other information required by the FCRA, is in
reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights.

157. Allstate’s adoption of its policy and Allstate’s practice and procedure of failing to
notify consumers that an adverse action has been taken against them, and failing to provide
consumers with notice of the consumers’ rights and other information required by the FCRA, is in
conscious disregard of the consumers’ rights.

158. Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class has sustained damages as a result of
Allstate’é failure to comply with the FCRA. Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class is also
entitled under Section 617 of the FCRA to damages of not less than $100 and not more than $1,000.
Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class is also entitled to attorneys’ fees as provided in the
FCRA.

COUNT VIII

WILLFUL NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
ASTO CLASSD

159. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth

herein.
160.  Allstate willfully violates the FCRA by obtaining consumer reports in connection

with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than the applicant.
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161.  Allstate’s adopted corporate policy and Allstate’s actual practice and procedure is to
obtain consumer reports on individuals other than the applicant during the underwriting of an
application for insurance. This policy and practice is not supported by a permissible purpose and
violates the FCRA.

162.  Allstate’s policy, practice and procedure of obtaining consumer reports in connection
with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than the applicant is
in reckless disregard of the consumers’ rights.

163.  Allstaie’s policy, practice and procedure of obtaining consumer reports during the
course of underwriting insurance applications relating to people other than the applicant is in
conscious disregard of the consumers’ rights.

164.  Geoffrey Cochran and each member of Class D has sustained damages as a result of
Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA. Geoffrey Cochran and each member of Class D is also
entitled under Section 617 of the FCRA to damages of not less than $100 and not more than $1,000.

Each Plaintiff and each member of the Class is also entitled to attorneys’ fees as provided in the

FCRA.
COUNT IX
NEGLIGENT NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
ASTOCLASSC
165. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

166.  Allstate negligently fails to comply with the notice requirements for users of
consumer reports imposed under the FCRA. Allstate fails to advise consumers of a denial or
cancellation of, or increase in any charge for, insurance based in whole or in part on information

contained in consumer reports as defined by the FCRA. Allstate negligently fails to provide
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consumers with the notices and other information required under the FCRA in the event of a denial
or cancellation of, or increase in any charge for, insurance, based in whole or in part on the
information contained in a consumer report.

167.  Allstate’s conduct wrongfully violates the notice provisions for users of consumer
reports under the FCRA.

168. Each Plaintiff and each member of Class C has sustained damages as a result of
Allstate’s failure to comply with the FCRA, in that Class members have uniformly lost the
opportunity to obtain free of charge copies of their credit reports used adversely against them,
pursuant to the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681j(b).

COUNTX

NEGLIGENT NONCOMPLIANCE WITH FCRA
ASTO CLASSD

169. Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege the allegations set forth above as if fully set forth
herein.

170.  Allstate negligently fails to comply with the FCRA by obtaining consumer reports
in connection with the underwriting of insurance policy applications relating to people other than
the applicant.

171.  Allstate’s conduct wrongfully violates the notice provisions and permissible purpose
provisions for users of consumer reports under the FCRA.

172. Each Plaintiff and each member of Class D has sustained damages as a result of

Alistate’s failure to comply with the FCRA.
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COUNT XI
INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF AS TO CLASS C

173.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein the allegations set forth above as if fully
set forth herein.

174.  Allstate continues to violate the rights of its applicants and customers in failing to
provide notice of adverse action under the FCRA, and if not enjoined from such violations by the
Court, Allstate will continue to engage in conduct which disregards the rights of consumers.

175. Unless Allstate is ordered to provide to Plaintiffs the adverse notice required by the
FCRA, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate remedy at
law.

176.  Upon information and belief, the acts complained of herein were done by Allstate as
part of a pattern and practice of failing to provide the required FCRA adverse action notice to
persons whose consumer information have been obtained and used in whole or in part to underwrite
the consumers’ applications for insurance.

177.  Uponinformation and belief, Allstate maintains no procedures designed to insure that
the required FCRA notices will be provided to the members of Class C, or such procedures which
are maintained are inadequate to insure that the required notifications will be provided.

178. Regarding those members of Class C who have already had adverse action taken on
their insurance premiums or applications, unless Allstate is ordered to provide to them the required
written notifications, they will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate

remedy at law.

39



COUNT XII
INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF AS TO CLASS D

179.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein the foregoing allegations.

180.  Allstate continues to violate the rights of consumers by obtaining consumer reports
on them in connectionwith the underwriting of an insurance policy application submitted by another
person, and 1f not enjoined from such violations by the Court, Allstate will continue to engage in
conduct which disregards the rights of consumers.

181. Unless Allstate is ordered to cease and desist obtaining consumer reports on
consumers in connection with the underwriting of an insurance application by another person, the
consumers will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate remedy at law.

182. Upon information and belief, the acts complained of herein were done by Allstate as
part of a pattern and practipe of obtaining consumer reports for impermissible purposes under the
FCRA and under false pretenses.

183. Uponinformation and belief, Allstate maintains no procedures designed to insure that
consumer reports are not obtained for impermissible purposes or under false pretenses.

184. Regarding those members of Class D who have already had their consumer reports
obtained for impermissible purposes and/or under false pretenses, unless Allstate is ordered to
discontinue this practice, they will continue to suffer irreparable injury for which there is no adequate
remedy at law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, demand

judgment against Allstate Indemnity and Allstate Insurance as follows:
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(a) Certify this action as a class action and designate Plaintiffs as the representatives
thereof;

(b) Awart\i each Plaintiff and member of each Class either (i) the actual damages
sustained by such Plaintiff or member of each Class as a result of Alistate’s willful failure to comply
with the FCRA, or (i1} damages of not less than $100 and not more than $1,000;

(c) Award each Plaintiff and member of each Class the actual damages sustained by them
as a result of Allstate’s negligent failure to comply with the FCRA;

(d) Award Plaintiffs and the members of each Class reasonable attorneys’ fees,
prejudgment interest, and the costs and expenses incurred in this action, including experts’ fees; and

(e) Grant such other relief as may be appropriate under the circumstances.

TRIAL BY JURY

All Plaintiffs in Parts One and Two demand a trial by jury of all issues so triable in this
action.

Respectfully submitted,
For the Plaintiffs,

JAMES, HOYER, NEWCOMER & SMILJANICH

By: 7—-, g ——y
Terry A. Smiljanich
4830 W. Kennedy Boulevard
Suite 550
Tampa, FL 33609
Telephone (813) 286-4100
Facsimile (813) 286-4174
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